HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 19, 2005
9:06 A M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Chenault called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:06:18 AM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair (Tel econf erenced)
Representative Eric Croft

Representative Ri chard Foster

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Representative Jim Holm (Tel econf erenced)
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representative M ke Kelly

Representative Carl Moses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch (Tel econf erenced)

VEMBERS ABSENT

none

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

KENAI, VALDEZ, KETCHI KAN, KODI AK, SEWARD:

Sandy Wasillie, Seward; Patrick Hayes, Seward; Steve Horn,
Al aska Behavi oral Health Association, Soldotna; Tony Lew s,
Kal ei doscope Charter School, Soldotna; Barbara Morgan,
Sol dot na; Vi ckie Tinker, Frontier Community  Services
Coordi nator, Soldotna; Margaret Parsons-WIIlians, Fetal
Al cohol Syndronme  Program Sol dot na; wally Klingel hut,
Transitional Living Center, Ketchikan; Patty Fay Hi ckox,
Recovering Alcoholic, Ketchikan; Yeda H cks, Vice Chair,
Wnmen in Safe Hones, Ket chi kan; Ed Zastrow, Al aska
Association of Retired People (AARP), Ketchikan; Carnen
Webb, Meeting the Chall enge, Ketchikan; Sherity Kelly, WSH,
Ket chi kan; Larry Fisher, WSH, Ketchikan; Rosita Teriano,
W SH, Ketchikan; WIllard Dunham City Council, Seward; Pat
Branson, Kodi ak Seniors, Kodiak; Bert Cottle, Advocates for
Victinms of Violence, Valdez; Alison Gottesman, Soldotna,
Kenai; Loui e Bencardi no, Seward; Alison Gottesman, Sol dotna;
Jacki e Bock, Fetal Al cohol D agnostic Study, Sol dotna

SI TKA, WRANGELL, PETERSBURG HOVER, DI LLI NGHAM

Julie Decker, SARDFA, Wangell; Valery MCandless, Cty of
Wangel |, Wangell; Frank Corgin, Nushagak Coop, Dillingham
Dave Bouker, Dillingham Linda Mihns, Homer; Lynda Raynond,
Honer; Renee Orians, Honer; Catriona Lowe, Katchimak Bay

House Fi nance Committee 1 03/19/05 9:06 A M



Famly Planning dinic, Homer; Lora WIke, Honer; G nger
Baim SAFE, D llingham Linda Rabideau, SAFE, Dillingham
Desa Erica Jacobsson, SAFE, Anchorage; Petla Noden, SAFE,
DiI'li ngham Joan Ribich, BBAGC- Represent ati ve  Hawker,
Dillingham Scott Weat, Honer; Jennie Hargrove, South
Peni nsula Wman's Services, Honer; Bob Kl uting, Sitka,;
Ful ton Thonpson, Sitka; Shay Hoffrman, Kachemak Bay, Famly

Pl anning Cinic, Homer;

El i zabet h Newnmann,

Honmer

MATSU, DELTA JUNCTI ON, TOK, GLENNALLEN, CORDOVA:

Janes @Grhart, WMatSu;
Comm ssi on; Mat Su; Roger
Cathryn Petrie, Mat Su;
Resource Center; Janet

Presi dent of JAM, Juneau

Don Zoerb, Al aska Public Broadcasting
Gay,
Ni col e
Johnson,

MVat Su;
Songer,
Cordova;

Gary Hant horn, WMat Su;
Cordova Famly
Sharon Lobaugh,

BETHEL, KOTZEBUE, BARROW NOME, OFFNETS:

M tch Chocknok, New Stoyal dok; Fred Pike, Bristol Bay; M ke
Swai n, Mayor, Bristol Bay; Mel Coghill, Menber, Assenbly,
Bristol Bay; Jason Nowpakahok, Mayor, Ganble; Suzie Mkaily,

Pi kes Station;

Barb Pungow yi ,

Bering Straits Wnen’ s G oup,

None; Dealy Bl ackshear, None; Ephenia Levi, Bethel; Nornan
Ayagairia, Bethel; Holly Chaney, Bethel; Bing Santanour,
Bethel; Barbara Lew s, Haines; Barbara MManus, Menber,
Anbler City Council; Jim WIlson, Anbler; Elaine Price,
Proj ect Manager, Coffman Cove; Carolyn Duncan, Coffnan Cove;
Neal Ceorge, Barrow, Dr. Bruce Ruttenburg, Deputy Director
of Maniilaqg, Kotzebue; Ross Schaeffer, Northwest Arctic
Bor ough, Kot zebue; Dick Wl and, Mayor, Sel dovi a

GENERAL SUBJECT(S) :

STATEW DE PUBLI C TESTI MONY
HB 66 & HB 67

The followi ng overview was taken in log note format. Tapes
and handouts wll be on file wth the House Finance
Comm ttee through the 24th Legislative Session, contact 465-
6814. After the 24th Legislative Session they wll be

avai |l abl e through the Legislative Library at 465-3808.

TI VE SPEAKER DI SCUSSI ON
Co- Chai r Convened the statewi de testinony for HB
Chenaul t 66 and HB 67.
KENAI , VALDEZ, KETCHI KAN, KODI AK,
SEWARD
9:07: 04 AM | STEVE HORN, | Urged full funding of FYO7 Medicaid
EXECUTI VE f undi ng. He testified in support of
Dl RECTOR, the Governor’s request to replace
ALASKA federal funding for diagnostic services
BEHAVORI AL for Fetal Al cohol Spectrum D sorder.
HEALTH M. Hor n added support of t he
House Fi nance Conmittee 2 03/19/05 9:06 A M




ASSOCI ATI ON, Governor’s $1.8 mllion dollar request
SOLDOTNA for continuation and expansion for
cervi cal and breast cancer screening.
9:10: 06 AM | TONY LEWS, | Requested further funding for charter
KALEI DOSCOPY school s.
CHARTER
SCHOQOL,
SCOLDOTNA
9:12: 00 AM | BARBARA Spoke in support for further funding
MORGAN, for all senior services.
SCOLDOTNA
9:13:38 AM |VICKIE TINKER, [Testified in support of the Governor’s
FRONTI ER request to replace federal funding for
COMMUNI TY di agnostic services for Fetal Al cohol
SERVI CES Spectrum Di sor der
COORDI NATOR,
SOLDOTNA
9:15: 01 AM | MARGARET Stressed the inportance of continued
PARSONS- fundi ng for FASD di agnosti c servi ces.
W LLI ANS,
FETAL  ALCOHOL
SYNDROVE
PROGRAM
SOLDOTNA
9:17: 07 AM | SANDY Uged greater funding for the Kenai
WASI LLI E, VI CE |school syst ens. She stressed the
PRESI DENT, urgent need as there is pending closure
KENAI SCHOCL | of school s.
BOARD, KENAI
9:19:26 AM | PATRICK HAYES, |Testified for greater funding for the
SEWARD subst ance abuse and chem cal dependency
t hroughout the State of Al aska.
9:22: 00 AM | WLLARD Requested further funding for t he
DUNHAM CITY|Allied Health Program and AVTEC He
COUNCI L, spoke to the grow ng need of the health
SEWARD care systemin the State. The program
has a long wait list. That requested
fundi ng takes care of Al aska residents.
9:23:34 AM | VWALLY Urged greater funding for transitional
KLI NGELHUT, living centers throughout the State.
MANAGER, He clained that cutting the Governor’s
TRANSI T1 ONAL request out of the budget would be
LIVING CENTER, [detrinental to all Al askans. He urged
KETCHI KAN t hat t he Governor’s request be
rest or ed. Stressed the inportance of
continued funding for FASD diagnostic
servi ces.
9:26:56 AM | PATTY FAY | Stressed t he need for conti nued
HI CKOX, treatnment for al cohol and drug abuse.
RECOVERI NG
ALCOHOLI C,
KETCHI KAN
9:28:49 AM | YEDA HI CKS, | Enphasi zed the need for greater funding

House Fi nance Committee

3 03/19/05 9:06 A M




VI CE CHAI R,

for wonen suffering from donmestic abuse

WOVEN |IN SAFE|and sexual assaul t. Costs have
HOVES, i ncreased over the years and the budget
KETCHI KAN has not been increased.
9:30:41 AM | ED ZASTROW | Commented on cuts to positions for the
AARP, Pi oneer Honmes in Fairbanks, Juneau and
KETCHI KAN Ket chi kan. He stressed the need of
those positions for safety concerns.
Urged restoring $300 thousand dollars
for those positions.
9:32: 53 AM | CARMVEN KEENAN, [Testified in support for |ndependent
SAI L, Li ving Centers and conti nued fundi ng.
KETCHI KAN
9:34:15 AM | CARL VBB, | Spoke in support for further funding
CHAI RVAN, for drug and al cohol prevention.
VEETI NG THE
CHALLENGE,
KETCHI KAN
9:35:10 AM | SHERI TY KELLY, |[Addressed the crucial services that the
W SH, WSH program provides for wonen and
KETCHI KAN chi | dren. Testified in support of
funding for donestic violence and
sexual assault prograns.
9:36:41 AM | LARRY FISHER, | Echoed concerns voiced by M. Kelly.
BOARD MEMBER, |Testified in support of funding for
W SH, donmestic violence and sexual assault
KETCHI KAN pr ogr ans.
9:37:58 AM | ROSI TA Testified in support of the Governor’s
TERI ANO, WSH, |request to replace federal funding for
KETCHI KAN di agnostic services for Fetal Al cohol
Spectrum Di sorder. She worried what
woul d happen to her son wthout the
support offered by these prograns. She
provi ded testinony from another parent
with children suffering from FASD, Ms.
Crystal Herron. She stated that the
WSH program support has saved her
life.
9:45: 03 AM | PAT BRANSON, |Urged continued funding for all senior
KCODI AK servi ces.
SENI ORS,
KODI AK
9:45: 58 AM | BERT COITLE, |Testified in support of funding for
ADVOCATES FOR|donmestic violence and sexual assault
VI CTI M5 CF | progr ans.
VI OLENCE,
VALDEZ
9:47:18 AM | ALI SON Commented on the lack of any service on
GOTTESMAN, the Kenai Peninsula for the severe
SOLDOTNA mental health services. She urged
greater and restored funding for these
types of prograns.
9:49: 01 AM | JACKI E BOCK, | Testified in support of the Governor’s

House Fi nance Committee

4 03/19/05 9:06 A M




FETAL ALCOHCL |[request to replace federal funding for
DI AGNCSTI C di agnostic services for Fetal Al cohol
STUDY, Spectrum Di sor der.
SCOLDOTNA
9:51:11 AM |LQU E Spoke in support for AVIEC. He pointed
BENCARDI NO, out the Governor’s recomrended cut of
AVTEC BOARD, | $300 thousand dol |l ars. He stated that
SEVARD Al aska needs to produce top quality
people and that AVTEC attenpts to do
that. He urged full funding.
9:53: 52 AM | AT EASE
10: 10: 43 AM | RECONVENE
SI TKA, VWRANGELL, PETERSBURG, HOVER,
DI LLI NGHAM
10:10:57 AM| LI NDA MJUHNS, | Stressed the inportance of cervical and
HOMVER br east cancer early det ection
screeni ng.
10:13: 32 AM|LYNDA RAYMOND, | Spoke to the inportance of cervical and
HOMVER br east cancer early det ection
screeni ng.
10:14:22 AM|RENEE ORI ANS, |Testified regarding the inportance of
HOVER cervi cal and br east cancer early
det ecti on screening.
10:16:56 AM|CATRIONA LOWE, |Testified in support of the Governor’s
K. BAY FAM LY |$1.8 mllion dol | ar request for
PLANNI NG conti nuati on and expansion for cervical
CLI NI C, HOVER and breast cancer screening.
10:18: 32 AM| LORA W LKE, | Spoke in favor of the Governor’'s $1.8
HOVER mllion dollar request for continuation
and expansion for cervical and breast
cancer screening.
10: 21: 02 AM| SCOT WHEAT, |Urged further funding for the nental
HOVER health budget so to cover crisis
services for the nental health agency.
10: 22: 39 AM| JENNI E Testified in support of funding for
HARGROVE, donmestic violence and sexual assault
SOUTH progranms. She added support of the
PENI NSULA Governor’s $1.8 mllion dollar request
WOVAN' S for continuation and expansion for
SERVI CES, cervical and breast cancer screening.
HOVER
10: 26: 03 AM| FRANK  CORBI N, | Addressed concerns with PCE.
CEQ, NUSHAGAK
COOoP,
Dl LLI NGHAM
10:29: 02 AM| DAVE BOUKER, | Added hi s concerns r egar di ng PCE
DI LLI NGHAM f undi ng. He provided a brief history
of hydro services in that area and
added that the PCE program helps to
| evel the playing field for the State’'s
utilities.
10: 32: 12 AM| G NGER BAIM |Testified in support of funding for
House Fi nance Conmittee 5 03/19/05 9:06 A M




SAFE, donmestic violence and sexual assault
DI LLI NGHAM pr ogr ans.
10: 38: 41 AM| LI NDA Not ed support of funding for donestic
RABI DEAU, vi ol ence and sexual assault prograns.
PRESI DENT, She commented on the “shrinking” that
SAFE, has occurred with the SAFE budget over
DI LLI NGHAM the years. Fundi ng has been flat over
t he past five years.
10: 40: 46 AM | DESA ERI CA| Noted that she trains shelter workers
JACOBSSON, in the politics of donestic violence.
SAFE, She testified in support of funding for
ANCHORAGE donmestic violence and sexual assault
progr ans.
10:42: 12 AM| PETLA NCDEN, | Conmented on the tragedy happening for
SAFE, the youth of Dillingham He urged
DI LLI NGHAM greater funding for drug and al cohol
abuse prograns. He stressed the need
for nmore prograns for the youth. He
added that there needs to be parenting
classes and nentioned that D llingham
should be reclassified as a second-
class city.
10:45: 55 AM| JOAN RIBICH, |Testified in support of restoration of
Dl RECTOR, the Human Services Mtching Gant of
BBAGC- VH, 2.2 mllion and nental health services.
DI LLI NGHAM She added supported for further drug
and al cohol drug abuse prograns.
10:48: 28 AM|JULIE DECKER, | Spoke to concerns wth the urchin
EXECUTI VE fishery. She clained that fishery is a
Dl RECTOR, | arge economc engine for fisheries in
SARDFA, general . SARDFA (IS requesting
VRANGEL L tenporary relief fromthe State through
general funds to help further develop
the fishery. She noted testing for
gooey duck fishery and those fee
structures.
10: 52: 10 AM| VALERY She wurged consideration of all the
MCCANDLESS, concerns that have been addressed at
MAYOR, CITY OF|the neeting and added support for
VWRANGELL, further consideration of the State's
VWRANGEL L retirenent system
10: 53: 40 AM| BOB KLUTING |Strongly recommended funding for the
SI TKA assisted living program and increased
f undi ng for t he consumner l'iving
portion. He added support for
I ndependent |iving services.
10:55: 06 AM|SHAY HOFFMAN, | Testified in support of the Governor’s
KACHEMAK BAY | $1. 8 mllion dol | ar request for
FAM LY conti nuati on and expansion for cervical
PLANNI NG and breast cancer screening.
CLINIC, HOMER
10: 57: 08 AM| ELI ZABETH Voi ced support of the Governor’s $1.8
NEWVANN, HOVER |[m I lion dollar request for continuation
House Fi nance Conmittee 6 03/19/05 9:06 A M




and expansion for cervical and breast

cancer screeni ng.

10: 58: 47 AM| Ms. Hargrove, |Read a prepared statenent from another
Honer person regarding living because of
funding of the cervical and breast
cancer screening.
11: 00: 21 AM| AT EASE
11: 14: 47 AM | RECONVENE
MATSU, DELTA JUNCTI ON, TOK, GLENNALLEN,
CORDOVA
11:15: 07 AM|JAMES GARHART, |Explained his forward-funded fiscal
MATSU pl an.
11:19: 58 AM| DON ZOERB, | Spoke in support of continued funding
MEMBER, PUBLIC|for public broadcasting.
BROADCAST
COW SSI ON,
MATSU
11:21: 58 AM| ROGER GAY, BIG|Testified in favor of continued funding
LAKE for nmental health services.
11:24: 07 AM| GARY HANTHORN, | Spoke against cutting nental health
MATSU Servi ces.
11:25: 41 AM| CATHRYN Stressed the inportance of continued
PETRI E, MATSU fundi ng for FASD di agnosti c servi ces.
11:28: 07 AM| NI COLE SONGER, |Testified in support of funding for
CORDOVA FAM LY |donestic violence and sexual assault
RESOURCE progr ans. Stressed the inportance of
CENTER continued funding for FASD diagnostic
servi ces.
11:29:36 AM|JANET JOHNSON, | Testified in support of conti nued
CORDOVA fundi ng for Medicaid services.
11: 33: 20 AM| SHARON Rel ated services provided by JAM and
LOBAUGH, encourage mai ntenance and increase of
PRESI DENT OF [the nental health budget. She al so
JAM , JUNEAU spoke in support of continued funding
for Medicaid prograns.
11: 36: 54 AM| AT EASE
12:08: 12 PM| RECONVENE
BETHEL, KOTZEBUE, BARROW NOVE,
OFFNETS:
12:08:38 PM| M TCH Spoke of financial difficulties in his
CHOCKNCK, NEW| communi ty.
STOYALDOK
12:09: 31 PM| FRED PIKE, | Explained a profile-nmapping project in
BRI STOL BAY his  borough. He spoke of t ax
exenptions and requested reinbursenent
for them He requested assistance with
hi gh fuel costs.
12:12:17 PM| M KE SWAIN, [Stressed the inportance of funding a
MAYOR, BRISTCOL [test fishery program He requested
BAY relief from mandated tax exenpti ons.
House Fi nance Conmittee 7 03/19/05 9:06 A M




12:15: 15 PM| REPRESENTATI VE | Requested information about the test
CROFT fishery.
12:16: 23 PM| MEL COGHILL, | Stressed the inportance of mapping and
VEMVBER, difficulty with tax exenptions. He
ASSEMBLY, al so opined that the school foundation
BRI STOL BAY funding is unfair to his school
district.
12:18:19 PM| JASON Spoke of high fuel costs, lack of road
NOWPAKAHCK, mai nt enance and other financial needs
MAYOR, GAMBLE of his comunity.
12:20: 56 PM| SUZIE MAKAILY, |Thanked the legislature for funding
Pl KES STATI ON wonen’ s prograns. She requested nore
funding for the Wnmnen and Children’s
Coalition.
12:22: 52 PM| BARB Shar ed statistics related to the
PUNGOW Y1, shel ter and nment i oned decl i ni ng
BERI NG STRAI TS |services due to flat funding.
WOMEN S GROUP,
NOVE
12:25:19 PM| DEALY Stressed the inportance of continued
BLACKSHEAR, funding for Mental Health services and
NOME Medi cai d fundi ng.
12:26: 42 PM| REPRESENTATI VE |Explained the problem wth getting
HAVKER certification due to a |lawsuit.
12:27:23 PM|EPHENIA LEVI, | Spoke of personal experience in the
BETHEL Wnen's Coalition Shelter and requested
conti nued funding for such prograns.
12:29: 55 PM| NORVAN Requested continued funding for the
AYAGAI Rl A, wonen’ s shelter.
BETHEL
12:30: 51 PM|HOLLY CHANEY, |Shared personal experience wth the
BETHEL shel ter. She testified in support of
continued funding for the wonen’s
shel ter.
12:32: 09 PM| BI NG Encour aged cont i nued fundi ng for
SANTAMOUR, education, and the wonen’'s shelter, and
BETHEL increased funding for village |aw
enforcenent, and recognition of tribal
gover nnent .
12:35:51 PM|BARBARA LEWS, |Testified in support of the Governor’s
HAI NES request to replace federal funding for
di agnostic services for Fetal Al cohol
Spectrum Di sor der.
12:38: 18 PM| BARBARA Requested that the revenue sharing
MCMANUS, program be reinstated. She expl ai ned
MEMBER, AMBLER | high costs in her community. She al so
Cl TY COUNCI L spoke in favor of funding for public
br oadcasti ng.
12:40:46 PM|JIM WLSON, | Related high costs and the need for
AMBLER financial support to his comunity.
12:43: 14 PM|ELAINE PRICE, |Spoke in favor of reinstating revenue
House Fi nance Conmittee 8 03/19/05 9:06 A M




PRQIECT sharing and of fundi ng wonen’ s
MANACER, shel ters.
COFFMAN COVE

12:46: 06 PM| CAROLYN Requested nore aid to nunicipalities.
DUNCAN,
COFFMAN COVE

12:47: 02 PM| NEAL GEORCE, | Encouraged funding for substance abuse
BARROW pr ogr ans.

12:48: 13 PM| DR BRUCE | Spoke of his concern for renoval of
RUTTENBURG, funds for substance abuse prograns.
DEPUTY
DI RECTOR OF
MANI | LAQ
KOTZEBUE

12:49: 57 PM| ROSS Encouraged funding for high fuel costs
SCHAEFFER, and encouraged support of revenue
NORTHVEST fundi ng and nental health progranms. He
ARCTI C requested that funding for subsistence
BOROUGH, conti nue.
KOTZEBUE

12:53:40 PM| DI CK WYLAND, | Stressed the inportance of continued
MAYOR, revenue sharing, which would affect
SELDOVI A many prograns in Sel dovia.

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 12:55 PM

House Fi nance Committee

9 03/19/05 9:06 A M




